North East Surrey Crematorium Board
11 September 2018
10.00 am at the
Civic Offices, St Nicholas Way, Sutton, SM1 1EA

To all members of the North East Surrey Crematorium Board:Chair:
Vice-Chair

Councillor Michael Ryder, London Borough of Wandsworth
Councillor Marsie Skeete, London Borough of Merton

Members:

Councillor Pauline Cowper, London Borough of Merton
Councillor David Simpson CBE, London Borough of Merton
Councillor Rosemary Birchall, London Borough of Wandsworth
Councillor Terry Walsh, London Borough of Wandsworth
Councillor Tony Belton, London Borough of Wandsworth
Councillor Graeme Henderson, London Borough of Wandsworth
Councillor Jean Crossby, London Borough of Sutton
Councillor Vincent Galligan, London Borough of Sutton
Vacancy, London Borough of Sutton

Clerk to the Board
Civic Offices
St Nicholas Way
Sutton
SM1 1EA
Friday, 31 August 2018

Enquiries to: Sharon Major, Clerk to the Board Tel: 020 8770 4990, Email:
committeeservices@sutton.gov.uk

Copies of reports are available in large print on request

AGENDA

1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Declarations of Interest

3.

Minutes of the last meeting

5-8

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 12
June 2018.
4.

Report of the Surveyor

9 - 30

This report is to provide an update to the board on activities in the
quarter to September 2018 relating to the management agreement
between North East Surrey Crematorium Board and Wandsworth
Council. The day to day management responsibilities are carried out on
behalf of the Council by Enable Leisure and Culture.
5.

Report of the Treasurer

31 - 38

This report is to provide an update to the Board on the performance
against the Management Agreement Annual Budget as approved in
December 2017 and to provide an update to the Board on the latest
Interim Accounts.
6.

Annual Review of Risks

39 - 48

This report is to provide an update to the annual review of risks and a
documented approach to risk management.
7.

Update on Progress with Actions from Annual Review of Internal
Control Report
This report is to provide an update to the Board on the progress made
with the actions from the Annual Review of Internal Control, as reported
by the Treasurer on 12 June 2018.

8.

Exclusion of the press and public
The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the
committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports
revealing exempt information:

2

49 - 72

“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraph 3 Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972.”
9.

Any urgent items brought forward at the discretion of the Chair
The Chair must approve the reason for urgency.

10.

Date of next meeting
The next meeting of the Board will take place on 4 December 2018 at 10
am at Civic Offices, St Nicholas Way, Sutton, SM1 1EA.

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Annex

CIVIC OFFICES, SUTTON
GROUND FLOOR MEETING ROOMS
FIRE PRECAUTIONS
If there is a FIRE in the building the fire alarm will sound. Leave the building
immediately by the most direct route, either back through reception or the fire exit
into Lower Square. Take your coat and any bags with you. Assemble in the car
park in front of the Holiday Inn.

Toilet

Toilet
Room 1
Toilet

Toilet

Reception

Room
5

Room
4

Fire
Exit

Room
2

Room
3

Entrance
Lower Square

Exit

Holiday Inn
Car Park

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 3

Agenda Item 2

Reminder – Declarations of Interests
Members should consider the following interests and whether they have any they
should declare.
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and you have either declared it beforehand in the Register of Members’
Interests or to the Monitoring Officer for entry in the Register you must state at this
meeting that you have such an interest and then withdraw from the room or chamber
where the meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and have not previously declared it you must declare the nature of that
interest at this meeting and then withdraw from the room or chamber where the
meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Other Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
Where you have any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any business at
this meeting you must declare that interest, but may continue to speak and vote on
the matter. However, if the interest is one which a member of the public, with
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as so significant that it is
likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest then you should declare the
interest and withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting is being held
whilst that business is considered.
If, during the course of the committee meeting, you consider you may have an
interest you should always declare it

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

North East Surrey Crematorium Board
12 June 2018

NORTH EAST SURREY CREMATORIUM BOARD
12 June 2018 at 10.00 am

Members :

Councillor(s) Pauline Cowper, Marsie Skeet, David Simpson,
Rosemary Birchall, Terry Walsh, Tony Belton, Graeme Henderson,
Michel Ryder, Jean Crossby and Vincent Galligan

1. APPOINTMENT OF THE CHAIR OF THE BOARD
By convention the role of Chair of the Board is taken by the three constituent authorities in
rotation. To accord with that convention the Chair for 2018/19 was elected from amongst
the London Borough of Wandsworth Councillors.
It was proposed by Councillor Rosemary Birchall, and seconded by Councillor Terry Walsh
that Councillor Michael Ryder be elected Chair for the municipal year 2018/19.
A vote was taken and it was:
RESOLVED: That
1. Councillor Michael Ryder be elected Chair for the municipal year 2018/19

2. APPOINTMENT OF THE VICE CHAIR OF THE BOARD
By convention the role of Vice-Chair of the Board is taken by the three constituent
authorities in rotation. To accord with that convention the Vice Chair for 2018/19 was
elected from amongst the London Borough of Merton councillors.
It was proposed by Councillor Marsie Skeet, and seconded by Councillor Pauline Cowper
That Councillor Marsie Skeet be appointed Vice Chair
A vote was taken and it was:
RESOLVED: That
1. Councillor Marsie Skeet be elected Vice-Chair for the municipal year 2018/19.

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence.

1

Agenda Item 3

Page 6
North East Surrey Crematorium Board
12 June 2018

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
No declarations of interest were made.

5. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING
The minutes of the meeting held on 13 March were agreed as a correct record and signed
by the Chair.

6. REPORT OF THE SURVEYOR
Clive Andrews, the Surveyor introduced the report, covering the last 3 months to June
2018, and drew Members attention to the following points:
Business activity -The Surveyor advised the total number of cremations for the year was
2006. This figure was higher than originally estimated for the year. He discussed funeral
poverty and highlighted the reduced fee that the Board had agreed for early morning
cremations. This is believed to be a key factor in the increasing numbers of cremations at
NESCB, along with the excellent facilities and service provided.
Councillor Tony Belton asked how many funerals are held for non-parishioners, who do not
live in the 3 boroughs. The Surveyor agreed to revert to all Members with that information.
Performance Monitoring of Enable Leisure and Culture for quarter 3 year 3 was discussed.
The Surveyor advised the Board that activity is monitored on a quarterly basis. The surveyor
spoke through the exempt report.
Following Member questions and debate it was confirmed that the The Ashes lawn is where
a cremation has taken place and if the family do not wish to purchase a memorial, there are
designated areas within the gardens where these ashes are interred. In respect of the
proposal to raise the ashes lawn it was confirmed that none of the existing ashes will be
disturbed when the new ashes lawn is raised. Members were advised that planning
permission is needed before this can proceed therefore the proposed date for this work to
take place in the summer is likely to be delayed.
Members requested further details on employee salaries. Councillor Belton asked for the
cost of increasing salaries to the London living wage. Simon Ingyon, Enable Leisure and
Culture Executive Director will revert direct to Members in due course with this information.
Action plan
The surveyor went through the action plan in appendix C which forms part of the business
plan. It was confirmed that NESCB will be looking for an abatement partner to replace
Putney Vale in 2019. In respect of purchasing additional burial land valuations are taking
place and these will be shared with the board when available.
The Surveyor outlined the programme of repair and renewals.

2

Page 7

Agenda Item 3

North East Surrey Crematorium Board
12 June 2018

RESOLVED that the North East Surrey Crematorium Board

1. Noted the report of the Surveyor as an overview of the Surveyors findings for the
management for the crematorium in the past three months from April to June 2018

7. REPORT OF THE TREASURER
Mark Davies, the Treasurer to the Board introduced the report, and drew Members attention
to the following points:
Appendix A gave a report of the internal controls. He spoke through the concerns raised
within the report and he took care to outline the mitigating actions. Debate took place on the
arrears of payments from funeral directors, and the Treasurer responded accordingly.
Councillor Graeme Henderson asked for the current total outstanding and the Treasurer
confirmed that this is now 160K reduced from 260K. The treasurer spoke through the
process to chase up payments within the 30 day payment period.
Regarding requirements of governance of financial documents the Treasurer advised these
will be updated and recirculated over the summer months. The Treasurer spoke through the
budget in appendix B, and confirmed the main underspend was on the reduction in energy
costs due to the more efficient equipment being in place. In respect of the board accounts in
appendix C it was highlighted that the income surplus is in excess of the original expectation
which was set based on 1850 cremations. This is due to a higher than expected number of
cremations taking place. It was confirmed that surplus distributions are decided in
December. In respect of appendix D the annual governance return, this was discussed
regarding requirement to approve the return. The governance arrangements were discussed
and also the accounting statement.
RESOLVED that the North East Surrey Crematorium Board
1. In relation to Appendix A, the Annual Review of Internal Control: the report by the
South West London Audit Partnership (SWLAP) was noted and the proposed
management actions be endorsed.
2. In relation to Appendix A, regarding the Annual Review of Internal Control: the reappointment of the South West London Audit Partnership (SWLAP) as the Board’s
internal auditors be approved.
3. In relation to Appendix B, regarding the Management Agreement: the Management
Agreement performance for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018, was noted.
4. In relation to Appendix C, the Board’s Accounts for the period 1 April 2017 to 31
March 2018 was noted
5. Appendix D, the Annual Governance and Accountability Return for year ending 31
March 2018: Section 1 - Annual Governance Statement be approved; and signed by
the Chair

3

Page 8

Agenda Item 3

North East Surrey Crematorium Board
12 June 2018
6. Appendix D, the Annual Governance and Accountability Return for year ending 31 March
2018: Section 2 - Accounting Statements, be approved, and signed by the Chair.

8. ANY URGENT ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD AT THE DISCRETION OF THE CHAIR
Simon Ingnon Enable Leisure and Culture Executive Director, invited all Members to
attend the Annual Memorial Service which will be held on Sunday 1 July at 3pm, at
North East Surrey Crematorium, Lower Morden Lane, Morden SM4 4NU.
9. DATE OF NEXT MEETING
The next meeting of the Board will take place on 11 September 2018 at
10 am, at Civic offices St Nicholas Way, Sutton, SM1 1E London Borough of Sutton

The meeting ended at 11.25 am

Chair:
Date:

4

Page 9

Report to:

North East Surrey Crematorium Board

Report title:

Report of the Surveyor

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Open/Exempt:

Councillor Michael Ryder

1.

Agenda Item 4

Date:

11 September 2018

Clive Andrews – Surveyor to the Board, 0208 871 7363
Open

Summary

1.1 This report is to provide an update to the board on activities in the quarter to September 2018
relating to the management agreement between North East Surrey Crematorium Board and
Wandsworth Council. The day to day management responsibilities are carried out on behalf of
the Council by Enable Leisure and Culture.
2.

Recommendations
The North East Surrey Cemetery Board is recommended to:

2.1 Approve the report as an overview of the Surveyors findings for the management of the
crematorium in the past three months (July – September 2018).
3.

Business Level Activity

3.1 Appendix A to this report provides information on cremation numbers for the past five years and
for the first four months of this financial year. Appendix B shows the same information in a graph.
This item is for information.
4.

Performance Monitoring

4.1 The performance report for Enable Leisure and Culture, quarter 4, year 3 (August 2018) is sent
under separate cover to the Surveyors report. The Surveyor will provide an overview of the
performance report, highlighting updates on the previous quarter and matters of interest.
This item is for information.
5.

Financial Matters

5.1 All financial matters have been correctly reported and are included in the Treasurers report.

Agenda Item 4

6.

Page 10

Quality Control

6.1 Three complaints were received in the last quarter (July – September 2018). The first related to
the quality of sound during a service. The system was subsequently checked by a sound engineer
and was found to be in good working order. The second complaint relates to the Tree of Life
memorial fountain not working and the third regarding the location of two memorial plaques and
their placement in the Garden of Remembrance. The Tree of Life and memorial plaque
complaints were referred to the Surveyor in accordance with the NESC complaints procedure.
6.2 The Surveyor found that substantial repairs had to be carried out to the fountain which took a
considerable time to arrange and implement before it was returned to working order.
6.3 There was some confusion between staff over the location of one of the two plaques at the time of
placement in the gardens. The plaque has now been placed in its required position. Replies were
sent by the Surveyor to the complainants and both issues have now been resolved.

This item is for information.

7. Employee Matters
7.1 Andrew Hume, the crematorium manager, has now successfully mentored three staff in studies to
qualify for the ICCM’s Crematorium Technicians Training Scheme. The scheme is nationally
recognised within the industry for crematorium staff. The ICCM has recognised Mr Hume’s.
achievement by issuing him an accredited mentoring certificate.

7.2 Ryan Barnden has been recruited to the post of crematorium technician. Members are advised
that ELC employ a total of ten staff to manage and operate both the crematorium and
administrative functions of the crematorium.

This item is for information
8.

Customer Statistics

8.1 All statistics have been produced as required.
This item is for information
9.

Health and Safety

9.1 There have been no reportable Health and Safety issues in the past three months at the
crematorium or within its grounds.

Page 11

Agenda Item 4

This item is for information

10. Action Plan
10.1 The Action Plan is reviewed annually. There are no further inclusions or deletions to the current
list of items for the next year.
This item is for information
11. Repair and Renewal – Routine Works
11.1 Appendix D provides information on the repairs and renewals programme for 2017/18 and
2018/19.

This item is for information

12.

Capital Works

12.1 Appendix E provides information on the capital programme with expenditure requirements
forecast through until 2025/26. The Surveyor will advise members as to the progress with works
taking place during 2018/19.
13. The Annual Memorial Service
13.1 The service took place on Sunday 2 July 2018, attended by the Mayor of Wandsworth and the
Deputy Mayor of Merton. Approximately 250 members of the public attended the service. The
service was addressed by ministers from St Laurence Church supported by a Civil Celebrant.
The music was provided by a local scout band and the crematoriums resident organist.
13.2 To commemorate the 60th anniversary of the crematorium, refreshments were provided to all
attendees who appreciated the preparations carried out by the staff and their assistance on the
day.
This item is for information
14.

Establishing A New Ashes Lawn

Summary

Agenda Item 4

Page 12

14.1 In keeping with crematoria throughout the UK, as an alternative to cremated remains being
collected from the crematorium by the applicant for the cremation or placed in areas as part of
memorial tribute. The crematorium sets aside an area for the placement of the ashes.
14.2 The renewal of the original ashes lawn forms part of the 2018/19 capital works programme. The
exhaustion of available land within the Garden of Remembrance remains a key factor for the
future management of the crematorium. Therefore the continued use of the existing ashes lawn
was, at the time, seen as a way to preserve available land.
14.3 In accordance with the Boards Scheme of Delegation, I am required to report any projects that
will exceed the agreed capital expenditure. Estimates indicate that the elevation of the ashes lawn
will exceed the capital budget of £75,000 by a minimum of £25,000.
14.4 Following the meeting of the Board in June 2018, members were escorted around the Garden of
Remembrance to show the range of memorials offered and further explain the repair / renewals
and capital programmes for the coming year.
14.5 During the visit to the ashes lawn, members expressed concerns regarding the arrangements to
elevate the original ashes lawn by mounding over the area with soil. Taking these comments on
board the Surveyor decided to re-examine the proposal and seek to provide an alternative location
to the original proposal.
14.6 A section of land suitable to establish a new communal ashes lawn has been identified which
could provide an alternative to mounding over the original ashes lawn. Based upon the following
information, members are asked to consider one of two options. Either to continue with the original
proposal and elevate the original ashes lawn, alternatively, create a new communal ashes lawn
elsewhere within the Garden of Remembrance. Both options provide the opportunity to install new
memorials around the perimeter of the ashes lawn. Members will be advised as to the details of
this new type of memorial once the preferred new ashes lawn is completed.
Option 1 – To continue with arrangements to mound over the original ashes lawn Appendix F.
This involves building a retaining wall approximately 1 metre above ground level along the boundary
of the lawn to contain the soil .This would also require the installation of a perimeter handrail, ramps
and steps in order to establish full disabled access.

Advantages


The use of the existing lawn would avoid using any other land within the gardens.



Due to the size of the existing lawn, this would allow further interments for approximately
50years.



Since agreement was reached to pursue the existing ashes lawn project, staff have advised a
number of mourners of the plan to raise the level of the lawn. To date none have disagreed
with the proposal.

Disadvantages

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



Contact with the ICCM has confirmed that no other crematorium in the UK have carried out a
project of this nature. Therefore the reputational risk to the crematorium remains unknown.



Due to unforeseen costs relating to additional requirements tor disabled access and the need
for full planning permission. Revised estimates indicate the costs would now be a minimum of
£100,000. (at least £25,000 more than the agreed capital sum)



A review of the trees in and around the ashes lawn has been carried out by ELC’s
arboriculture section. A healthy mature Cypress tree, approximately 50years of age, is within
the ashes lawn. Should planning permission be sought to elevate the lawn an objection would
be raised not to interfere with the tree. Consequently this would make the project difficult to
pursue as the surrounding area could not be disturbed to protect the tree as it forms part of the
ashes lawn.



Disruption to the ashes lawn is considered significant as heavy machinery will be needed for
the perimeter excavations and the construction of the retaining perimeter wall.

.
Option 2 – To create a new ashes lawn elsewhere in the garden Appendix G This involves using a
piece of land adjacent to the cloister walkway, originally memorial rose beds. There are no ashes
buried in this area and is therefore suitable for a new ashes lawn.
Advantages


There would be little disturbance to the crematorium grounds.



The cost to create a new communal ashes lawn would be contained within the allocated
capital programme budget figure.



The size of the area could possibly be extended at a later date by using adjacent memorial
rose beds thus extending the capacity to inter remains.

Disadvantages



Due to the size of the area, in comparison to option 1, estimates show this area would provide
approximately 15 years of interments. Considerably less than developing the original ashes
lawn.

Conclusion

14.7 Capacity for the interment of ashes in the original lawn has been re assessed and has revealed
an area of the lawn as yet unused. As a result and based upon the number of interments carried
out each year, there is capacity for a further 5 – 6 years of interments. This means that the

Agenda Item 4

Page 14

crematorium now has sufficient time to consider preparations to establish a new ashes lawn.
These works are envisaged to take place during 2019.

14.8 The elevation of the existing ashes lawn (option 1) would provide capacity for the interment of
ashes for a further fifty years. However the project is untested by any other crematorium in the
UK. Potentially this poses a risk to the crematoriums reputation in terms of distress from the
bereaved with major construction works taking place in a particularly sensitive area and the
original ashes lawn submerged under a further layer of soil. Costs have also escalated
considerably since the project was first agreed. There are also difficulties in preserving the
existing tree which is within the lawn. Generally the project is now thought to be particularly
challenging with a number of unknown risks attached.
14.9 The creation of a new ashes lawn (option 2) will provide land for the interment of ashes for a
further 15 years, considerably less capacity than elevating the original ashes lawn. However a
new ashes lawn does not represent a reputational risk to the crematorium and will be relatively
easy and less costly to implement in comparison to option 1. Furthermore, by establishing a new
ashes lawn, there is no requirement for planning permission and minimal adjustments to the lawn
for disabled access. Potentially, the lawn could be made larger, at a later date, for additional
interments by incorporating other memorial rose beds in the adjacent area.

This item is for decision

15. The Recycling of Metals Scheme
The Royal Marsden, Sutton, is the chosen local charity as a beneficiary from the scheme. A
cheque for £5,000 was donated in the last quarter and the Chairman has received a letter of
thanks from the charity.
This item is for information
16. Options Considered
There are no other options considered or recommended as part of this report.
17. Impacts and Implications
Financial
The financial implications arising are contained within this report.
18. Legal
There are no legal implications arising from the matters contained within this report.
Other impacts and implications

Page 15

Agenda Item 4

There are no other impact and implications arising from the matters contained within this report.

19.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

Cremation numbers for the past five years

B

Graph of cremation numbers for the past five years

C

Action Plan

D

Repairs and Renewals – Routine Works

E

Capital Works

F

Photograph of the existing ashes lawn (option1)

G

Photograph of the area proposed to create a new ashes lawn (option 2)

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 11 September
2018

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 17

Agenda Item 4
APPENDIX A

NORTH EAST SURREY CREMATORIUM BOARD
CREMATION STATISTICS

as at 31st July 2018
Forecast Number of Cremations included in Estimates for 2018/19

YEAR
2018/19
2017/18
AVERAGE
FOR LAST
5 YEARS

APR
183
145

MAY
189
169

JUNE
165
170

157

151

148

YEAR
2013/14
2014/15
2015/16
2016/17
2017/18
2018/19
% (+)/(-)
PREVIOUS
YEAR
AVERAGE
FOR LAST
5 YEARS
% (+)/(-)
AVERAGE
FOR LAST
5 YEARS

APR
168
141
160
173
145
183

MAY
328
295
307
298
314
372

JUNE
453
435
448
463
484
537

MONTHLY FIGURES
JULY AUG SEPT OCT
128
146
124
142
155

NOV

DEC

JAN

FEB

MAR

151

178

203

199

224

139

134

154

194

177

188

CUMULATIVE FIGURES
JULY AUG SEPT OCT
599
747
889 1,041
583
715
838 1,006
597
681
774
869
586
714
840
963
630
754
896 1,051
665

NOV
1,176
1,156
979
1,085
1,202

DEC
1,327
1,303
1,114
1,242
1,380

JAN
1,540
1,477
1,289
1,445
1,583

FEB
1,711
1,641
1,463
1,623
1,782

MAR
1,881
1,820
1,639
1,812
2,006

1,120

1,273

1,467

1,644

1,832

142

26%

18%

11%

157

308

457

599

16%

21%

18%

11%

The Town Hall,
Wandsworth High Street,
London, SW18 2PU
August 2018

1,850

123

125

6%

722

847

986

CLIVE ANDREWS
Surveyor to the Board

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX B
NORTH EAST SURREY CREMATORIUM BOARD
CREMATION STATISTICS
as at 31st July 2018

Cremations
250

2100
2050
2000

200

1950

1800
1750

100

1700

Page 19

MONTH TOTAL

1850

TWELVE-MONTH TOTAL

1900
150

1650
50

1600
1550

0

1500
AUG

OCT

NOV
Month

DEC

JAN
FEB
Ave Prev 5 yrs

MAR

APR
MAY
12 Mth Rolling Total

JUNE

JULY

CLIVE ANDREWS
Surveyor to the Board

Agenda Item 4

The Town Hall,
Wandsworth High Street,
London, SW18 2PU
August 2018

SEPT

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 21

Agenda Item 4
APPENDIX C

ACTION PLAN 2018/19 (September(2018) – updates in bold

Item Action

By When

By Whom

Progress/Comment
Results of the Merton EHO
visits and details of the
performance monitoring of the
crematorium are included as
part of the Surveyors report.
The annual emissions
testing of the cremators
took place 19.03.18. The
crematorium has received
confirmation that the test
was satisfactory. The report
is now on file and a copy
has been sent to Merton
EHO. The annual test forms
part of the crematoriums
permit to cremate.
Putney Vale Crematorium
required 635 TMACS at the
agreed cost per cremation.
Payment for the calendar year
2017 has now been made to
NESC. Putney Vale
Crematorium will require
TMACS for the year 2018.
However plans are in place to
replace their cremators during
2018 which will include
abatement plant. Thereafter, a
local burden sharing
agreement will no longer be
required. Investigations will
be carried out to identify a
new burden sharing partner.

1.

To take all
necessary
steps to ensure
that the
Crematorium is
and continues
to be compliant
with all
regulations
relating to the
operation of
cremators

On going

ELC
Surveyor
and
Treasurer

2.

Investigate
options for the
developing
income from
any Tradable
Mercury
Abated
Cremations
(TMACs)
remaining
following the
establishment
of the main
Mercury
Abatement
burden sharing
agreement with
Wandsworth
Council..

On going

ELC,
Surveyor
and
Treasurer

3.

Develop
improvements
to the Garden
of
Remembrance
and the
Cremated
Remains lawn
areas.

2018

Surveyor/
Treasurer

The Surveyor has met with a
representative from the
valuations office. Associated
details of the burial land
(block J, Battersea New
Cemetery) have been
provided in order to receive a
second valuation of the land.
An assessment can then be
made in comparison to the
original valuation provided by
Wandsworth Council’s
managing agent.

Page 22

Agenda Item 4
Item Action

By When

By Whom

Progress/Comment

The results of the valuation
are expected sometime in the
New Year and will be included
in a subsequent report to the
Board.
The Surveyors intention was
to bring a report on the
valuation of the land as part of
his March 2018 report.
However the valuation
received remains in draft
format whist the Surveyor and
Treasurer pose questions
relating to the valuation. In the
interim the Surveyor has
approached Wandsworth
Councils Property Services for
an update on their 2015
valuation. The results will be
included in a subsequent
report to the Board.
The Surveyor has received
the final report from the
valuations agency and
awaits the updated
valuation report from
Wandsworth Council. The
intention is to present both
reports to the Board at a
subsequent meeting.
4.

Review the
range of
memorials
offered by the
Board

On going

5.

Hold a focus
group meeting
with Funeral
Directors.
Develop and
publicise the
Board’s
facilities and
services.

2019

6.

On going

Board
Officers –
Surveyor,
Treasurer
and Clerk

Above ground niches now in
place on the new section of
land. Providing options for
either two or four sets of
ashes.

Board
Officers

Visits to local Funeral
Directors are arranged
biannually with the next visits
intended for 2019.
The website provides all
associated information relating
to the crematorium and its
services.

Board
Officers –
Surveyor,
Treasurer
and Clerk

2

APPENDIX D
NORTH EAST SURREY CREMATORIUM BOARD
REVENUE REPAIRS & WORKS
2018/19
No.

1

Forecast
£

Budget
Original
Revised
£

Surveyor Comments

Chapel

2

Internal Works & Service Items
Service gas equipment
Service sewage pumps (part) BTU
Service Air con equip.
Service Fire Alarm System
Service Intruder Alarm
Service CCTV System

a
b
c
d
e
f
g

External Works
Annual contract for fountain cleaning
Annual repointing paving throughout site
Annual inspection of Lightning Conductor
Annual renovation of benches
Annual clearance of gutters
Repointing of brickwork in Cloisters
Maintenance of Chapel and Remembrance Building Roofs

600.00
500.00

600
500
200
400
500
500

1,000
2,500
300
4,500
800
10,000
3,500

1,000
2,500
300
4,500
800
10,000
3,500

3,000

3,000

13,138.00

48,000

48,000

4,154.73

12,000

12,000

2,000

2,000

90,640

90,300

784.02
440.00

Cremators
a Annual testing
b Maintenance

5

General

6

Repairs Contingency (see next page)

7

Cremators Contingency (see next page)

19,616.75

Periodic inspections to identify any areas for repair

Works to continue throughout the summer
Associated costs being sought from contractors
Associated costs being sought from contractors

Completed. Awaiting invoice
Quarterly costs submitted and verified for payment
throughout the financial year

-

Agenda Item 4

600
500
200
800
500
440

Page 23

a
b
c
d
e
f
3

4

Works

Invoice
Total
£

APPENDIX D

6

7

Works

Repairs Contingency - details
a Engineer with Tanker
b Fountain Repairs
c Other Misc (Under £250 per item)

Invoice
Total
£

Forecast
£

Budget
Original
Revised
£

7,800
1,100
2,000
1,100

12,000

1,092.50
1,996.00
1,066.23
4,154.73

12,000

12,000

2,000

2,000

2,000

2,000

Cremators Contingency - details
-

Surveyor Comments

Agenda Item 4

No.

-

-

Page 24

APPENDIX E
NORTH EAST SURREY CREMATORIUM BOARD
CAPITAL PROGRAMME
2018/19
17/18

Act
£

1

Contribution to resurfacing
pathways and rest of main drive

18/19
Rev
Est
£

Orig
Est
£

Act
£

Slippage

Rev
Est
£

19/20

20/21

21/22

22/23

23/24

24/25

25/26

26/27

26/28

27/28

Est
£

Est
£

Est
£

Est
£

Est
£

Est
£

Est
£

Est
£

Est
£

Est
£

Surveyor Comments

121,304

120,000

-

-

-

-

12,557
6,365

10,000
6,500

-

-

-

-

70,758

100,000

-

-

29,000

29,000

5,586

26,000

-

-

20,000

20,000

-

15,000

-

15,000

15,000

30,000

10,490

18,000

-

-

8,000

8,000

8 Re-roof Cloister walkway
Replacement of Curtains and
9
track system in Chapel
Improved security lighting and
10
floodlights
Renew Ashes Lawn and build
11
retaining wall

-

-

-

30,000

-

30,000

Completed Aug 18'. Awaiting
Invoice
Pending , drainage works may be
considered on the new cremated
remains section
Expected start Sep 18'

-

-

-

20,000

-

20,000

Expected completion Sep 18'

-

-

-

8,000

-

8,000

-

-

1,303

75,000

-

75,000

12 Enhancement of Music System

-

-

-

15,000

-

15,000

13 Mower/tractor

-

-

-

-

-

-

2 New Internet Music System
3 Replace CCTV System
Installation of Heat Exchange
4
system and new Heating
5 Cremator Replacement
Fire Safety Improvement
6
Measures
7

Creation of new Cremated
Remains Grave Circles

295,500

1,303

163,000

72,000

235,000

Page 25

227,059

Completed Jul 18'. Awaiting invoice

Fist quotation received .Awaiting
other quotes
Pending. Decision to be made Sep
18'
Completed Aug 18'
12,000
-

12,000

14,000
-

-

-

-

14,000

-

-

-

Agenda Item 4

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 27

Agenda Item 4

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 29

Agenda Item 4

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 31

Agenda Item 5

Report to:

North East Surrey Crematorium Board

Date:

Report title:

Report of the Treasurer on the latest financial position

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Open/Exempt:

Councillor Michael Ryder

11 September 2018

Mark Davies - Treasurer to the Board, 020 8871 6502
Open

1.

Summary

1.1

This report is to provide an update to the Board on the performance against the Management
Agreement Annual Budget as approved in December 2017 and to provide an update to the
Board on the latest Interim Accounts.

2.

Recommendations
The North East Surrey Crematorium Board is recommended to:

2.1

Note the Management Agreement performance for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 July 2018,
attached at Appendix A, for information, and

2.2

Note the Interim Accounts for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 July 2018, attached at Appendix B,
for information.

3.

Background / Update

3.1

Management Agreement performance 1 April 2018 to 31 July 2018
Transactions incurred under the Management Agreement are reflected in Appendix A attached
and are compared with the Annual Budget approved by the Board in December 2017.
These figures include costs incurred by Enable and invoiced to the Board for the period from 1
April 2018 to 31 July 2018.

3.2

Interim Accounts for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 July 2018
Appendix B attached shows transactions to date against the estimates approved by the Board
in December 2017.
(Line 3) Progress on the maintenance of buildings and plant is the subject of the Surveyor's
report elsewhere on this agenda.

Agenda Item 5

Page 32

(Line 14) The expenditure on the Management Agreement represents the total invoiced by
Enable for the period to the end of July 2018 as covered in item 3.1 above.
(Line 23) Income reflects cash received to 17 August 2018, but only takes account of amounts
outstanding on Funeral Directors’ accounts to the end of July 2018. Income as a proportion of
estimates at 42.1% (at 33% of the year) is above the equivalent position at this time last year
(37.0%). Actual income levels in the current year (£0.5 million) are significantly above the
equivalent position this time last year (£0.445 million) due to the increase in demand for
services. It appears likely that the original estimate of 1,850 cremations for 2018/19 will be
exceeded and is forecast to be in line with the 2017/18 activity levels at around 2,000
cremations based on current trends and projections. Revised financial estimates will be
presented to the Board in December 2018 for approval which will take into account the
anticipated activity levels for the current and future years.
(Line 29) Progress against the major elements of the capital programme is covered in the
Surveyor’s report elsewhere on this agenda. The estimate for the current year includes all
slippage from 2017/18 for capital works that were not completed by the end of the financial
year.
(Line 34) Based on the position to date the interim accounts show a balance on the Board’s
accounts of £1.078 million. This will be significantly reduced by the end of the financial year as
there are a number of expenditure items (both capital and revenue) still to be incurred as well as
the distribution of planned surpluses to the constituent Local Authorities which normally occurs
after the revised financial estimates are approved in December of each financial year.
The overall position will continue to be monitored and reported to the Board at regular intervals
throughout the financial year.
4.

Issues

4.1

There are no other issues other than those already contained within this report.

5.

Options Considered

5.1

There are no options considered or recommended as part of this report.

6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

The financial implications arising are contained within this report.
Legal

6.2

There are no legal implications arising from the matters contained within this report.

Page 33

Agenda Item 5

Other impacts and implications
6.3

There are no other impact and implications arising from the matters contained within this report.

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

Management Agreement Performance 2018/19

B

Interim Accounts 2018/19

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 29 August 2018

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 35

Agenda Item 5

APPENDIX A
NORTH EAST SURREY CREMATORIUM BOARD
Report by the Treasurer

Management Statement for the period 1st April 2018 to 31st March 2019
2017/18

(As at End July - 4 months data from Enable)
Cost of Sales
1017
ROSES & ROSE PLAQUES
3037
PURCHASE OF SOUND RECORDINGS
3404
ANNUAL MEMORIAL SERVICE
3414
BOOK OF REMEMBRANCE
3427
CREMATION PLOTS
3453
KERBSTONE MEMORIALS
3463
MEMORIAL PLAQUES
3467
MINIATURE BOOKS AND CARDS
3499
URNS/BOXES
3522
CREMATION JEWELLERY
Total Cost of Sales
Administrative Costs
0001
SALARIES - MONTHLY
0040
NATIONAL INSURANCE
0045
EMPLOYER PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS
0051
AGENCY STAFF
0077
TRAINING - EXTERNAL COURSES
0096
STAFF ADVERTISING - VACANCIES
1070
ENERGY COSTS - ELECTRICITY
1072
ENERGY COSTS - GAS & OTHER
1207
SKIP HIRE
1213
GROUNDS MAINTENANCE COSTS
1281
MISC REPAIRS
1301
CLEANING & DOMESTIC SUPPLIES
1305
TOILET HYGIENE SERVICES
1306
WINDOW CLEANING
1381
WATER CHARGES (METERED)
2003
CAR ALLOWANCE
2010
PUBLIC TRANSPORT FARES
2041
HIRE - TRANSPORT
3000
EQUIPMENT, FURNITURE & MATS
3014
ENGRAVING MATERIALS
3015
FIRE EXTINGUISHERS
3104
FOOD & CONSUMABLES
3150
CLOTHING & UNIFORMS
3151
LAUNDRY
3342
PRINTING AND STATIONERY
3347
PUBLICITY
3416
CASH IN TRANSIT
3435
ELECTRICAL TESTING
3462
MEDICAL REFEREES FEES

1 of 2

2018/19

Outturn

2018/19
Actual
to Date

Budget

2018/19
Original
Budget

£

£

%

£

860.50
9,464.75
1,908.37
5,260.07
25,446.90
1,115.40
6,761.09
163.95
4,901.90
4,550.12
60,433.05

776.50
9,318.98
1,646.18
2,866.15
7,267.34
857.00
3,526.58
22.76
3,093.95
965.65
30,341.09

20%
116%
61%
57%
48%
43%
88%
3%
77%
24%
62%

3,800
8,000
2,700
5,000
15,000
2,000
4,000
800
4,000
4,000
49,300

229,700.12
21,000.71
23,586.11
6,732.38
1,510.00
-960.00
6,732.23
27,145.13
4,653.26
4,236.09
0.00
891.18
478.96
750.00
1,064.52
178.69
0.00
3,856.58
2,531.06
0.00
145.76
857.15
888.89
165.29
5,004.09
0.00
0.00
0.00
12,585.00

73,637.70
7,040.73
6,763.97
1,267.11
0.00
0.00
1,069.64
-17,978.49
1,530.38
2,244.27
89.40
397.74
34.05
450.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
1,849.77
647.65
0.00
0.00
68.37
450.04
52.60
101.06
0.00
136.00
0.00
4,415.50

30%
31%
26%
63%
0%
0%
15%
-31%
31%
56%
0%
40%
9%
45%
0%
0%
0%
44%
32%
0%
0%
14%
35%
13%
3%
0%
14%
0%
28%

245,500
22,400
25,800
2,000
1,500
1,000
7,300
58,200
5,000
4,000
0
1,000
400
1,000
1,000
600
200
4,200
2,000
1,000
100
500
1,300
400
4,000
1,000
1,000
200
15,700

Agenda Item 5

Page 36
APPENDIX A
2017/18

(As at End July - 4 months data from Enable)
3600
COMMUNICATIONS - POSTAGE
3602
COMMUNICATIONS - TELEPHONES
3621
I.T. EQUIPMENT & MAINTENANCE
3764
SUBSCRIPTIONS
Total Administrative Costs

Budget

2018/19
Original
Budget

£

£

%

£

2,976.78
0.00
22.79
2,806.37
359,539.14

1,343.84
0.00
1,918.69
445.00
87,975.02

54%
0%
48%
89%
21%

2,500
800
4,000
500
416,100

3,500.00

3,500.00

100%

3,500

423,472.19

121,816.11

26%

468,900

-423,472.19

-121,816.11

26%

-468,900

MANAGEMENT FEE
GROSS EXPENDITURE
NESCB REIMBURSEMENT

2018/19

Outturn

2018/19
Actual
to Date

NET TOTAL

-

2 of 2

-

-

-

Page 37

Agenda ItemB5
APPENDIX

NORTH EAST SURREY CREMATORIUM BOARD
Report by the Treasurer

Interim Income and Expenditure Account for the period 1st April 2018 to 31st March 2019
2017/18
Actual
£
EXPENDITURE
EMPLOYEES
Salaries

2018/19
Estimate
£

2018/19
Actual
£

(1)
(2)

16,110
16,110

17,890
17,890

6,297
6,297

(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)

72,656
3,580
9,763
71,656
157,655

90,300
3,620
9,800
74,340
178,060

(955)
1,207
5,713
36,832
42,797

(8)
(9)
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)

3,789
1,200
5,130
946
16,103
27,168

3,810
1,090
960
1,010
16,740
23,610

607
1,161
213
0
16,866
18,847

(14)
(15)
(16)

423,472
20,100
443,572

468,900
18,980
487,880

121,816
5,527
127,343

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

(17)

644,505

707,440

195,284

INCOME
FEES AND CHARGES
Agency Reimbursement - LBW
Cremation Fees
Cremated Remains Graves
Memorials
Tradeable Mercury Abatement Credits
TOTAL INCOME

(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)
(23)

7,360
1,042,679
120,739
162,520
22,809
1,356,107

7,430
950,000
45,000
185,300
0
1,187,730

2,477
357,416
52,625
75,078
12,768
500,364

PREMISES
Maintenance of Buildings and Plant
Maintenance of Grounds
Rents
Rates
SUPPLIES AND SERVICES
Bank, Audit and Actuary's Fees
Environmental Protection Act Fees
Expenses
Subscriptions etc
Insurance
THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS
Wandsworth Borough Council
Clerical and Accounting Assistance

1 of 2

Agenda Item 5

Page 38

APPENDIX B

Interim Income and Expenditure Account for the period 1st April 2018 to 31st March 2019
2017/18
Actual
£
1,356,107

2018/19
Estimate
£
1,187,730

2018/19
Actual
£
500,364

TOTAL INCOME

(24)

Less: TOTAL EXPENDITURE

(25)

(644,505)

(707,440)

(195,284)

NET SERVICE INCOME/(EXPENDITURE)

(26)

711,602

480,290

305,080

Interest and Investment Income

(27)

944

0

0

NET OPERATING INCOME

(28)

712,546

480,290

305,080

APPROPRIATIONS
Contribution to Capital Reserves:
Capital Expenditure

(29)

(227,060)

(235,000)

(1,303)

(30)

(227,060)

(235,000)

(1,303)

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR YEAR

(31)

485,486

245,290

BALANCES
Balance at 1st April
Distribution of Surplus Balances
Balance at 31st March

(32)
(33)
(34)

788,480
(500,000)
773,966

773,966
(500,000)
519,256

2 of 2

303,777

773,966
0
1,077,743

Page 39

Agenda Item 6

Report to:

North East Surrey Crematorium Board

Report title:

Report of the Treasurer, Clerk and Surveyor on the Annual Review of
Risks
Councillor Michael Ryder

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Open/Exempt:

Date:

11 September 2018

Mark Davies - Treasurer to the Board, 020 8871 6502
Clive Andrews - Surveyor to the Board, 020 8871 7363
Sharon Major - Clerk to the Board, 020 8770 4990
Open

1.

Summary

1.1

This report is to provide an update to the annual review of risks and a documented approach to
risk management.

2.

Recommendations
The North East Surrey Crematorium Board is recommended to:

2.1

Note the annual review of risks.

3.

Background / Update

3.1

Risks can be simply defined as:




3.2

Risk management is a planned and systematic approach to the identification, evaluation and
control of risk having regard to:




3.3

Things that can go wrong and prevent the achievement of business objectives.
Unwanted outcomes, potential failures and the prevention of desired results.
The probability that an event or action may adversely affect the achievement of business
objectives.

Levels of risk.
Cost and effort to control risks.
Acceptable residual exposure to risks.

Risk-taking is part of life, and therefore part of the operation and management of every
organisation. It is rarely possible to eliminate risk entirely, and the cost of applying all the
controls needed to do so is generally prohibitive. So, risk management is concerned with the
best way to maximise the likelihood of achieving objectives with good value for money.

Page 40

Agenda Item 6

3.4

Appendix A provides a structured and documented approach to identifying potential risks within
the Board’s operating environment and the mitigating risk management strategy. Risks are
dealt with either as part of the day-to-day management of the Service by the Crematorium
management and staff or through the work of the Board’s officers.

3.5

Risks are reviewed annually by the Board's Chief Officers for the Board's consideration, and in
order that actions may be taken to minimise risks to the Board in achieving its objectives. The
Board's strategy consists of identifying risks, key controls, assurances obtained, responsibilities
for areas of risk, and an action plan to address areas of concern.

3.6

There are no significant changes proposed to the previously approved Annual Review of Risks,
just minor updates where Chief Officers consider these necessary.

4.

Issues

4.1

There are no other issues other than those already contained within this report.

5.

Options Considered

5.1

There are no options considered or recommended as part of this report.

6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

The financial implications arising are contained within this report.
Legal

6.2

There are no legal implications arising from the matters contained within this report.
Other impacts and implications

6.3

There are no other impact and implications arising from the matters contained within this report.

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

Annual Review of Risks

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 29 August 2018

APPENDIX A

Annual Review of Risks
GLOSSARY
BACAS
ELC
GDPR
ICCM
NESC
WBC

Burial and Cremation Administration System
Enable Leisure and Culture
General Data Protection Regulations
Institute of Cemetery and Crematorium Management
North East Surrey Crematorium
Wandsworth Borough Council

Key Business Risks
Principal Risks

2.

Inadequate working
balance
3. Incorrect distributions
to/levies on constituent
authorities
Financial - Income
4. Reduced mortality rates

Memorial sales are subject
to price sensitivity and the
volume of sales is difficult
to estimate

Responsible
Officer

Action Plan

Segregation of duties. Regular reporting and
reconciliation. Checking of invoices from
ELC/WBC for reimbursement.
Regular monitoring and reporting

Satisfactory

Treasurer

No action proposed

Satisfactory

Treasurer

No action proposed

Report to Board and letters to constituent
councils

Satisfactory

Treasurer

No action proposed

Regular monitoring and reports to Board,
including comparisons with previous years and
neighbouring crematoria, and a 10 year
financial projection to assist/inform in the
review of service and income.
Estimates and charges reviewed annually and
performance monitored and reported at Board
meetings. Regular reviews of memorialisation
undertaken and reported to the Board.

Satisfactory

Surveyor/Treasurer

No action proposed

Satisfactory

Surveyor/Treasurer

Business plan being reviewed
2018/19.

1

Agenda Item 6

5.

Assurances

Page 41

Financial - General
1. Financial misstatements

Key Controls

APPENDIX A

Assurances

Responsible
Officer

Action Plan

Extent/impact (if any) of
competition
Failure to maintain
expected standards for the
crematorium and grounds appearance/attractiveness
of the facilities including
image, professionalism,
helpfulness and the general
impression of Board to the
public

As per 4 and 5 above

Satisfactory

Surveyor/Treasurer

No action proposed

Management Agreement defines expected
Satisfactory
standards and reports are presented to the
Board at each meeting. Crematorium
inspected every three months to assess works
required. At least one Board meeting per year
held at Crematorium. Complaints procedure in
place. Board has reviewed quality of facilities
and has invested significantly in improvements.
Board has Charter for the Bereaved status.

Surveyor

8.

Unfavourable relationships
with Funeral Directors

Daily contact with Funeral Directors. Liaison
visits to undertaken.

Surveyor

9.

Incomplete and/or
inaccurate
invoicing/ineffective
recovery

Charges reviewed in December and
Satisfactory
implemented on 1st January each year. New
charges published immediately after December
approval. Invoicing undertaken monthly in
accordance with Management Agreement,
using BACAS system. Regular statements
passed to Treasurer. Procedures subject to
annual audit.
Work with supplier to ensure that both
Satisfactory
cremators are used with abatement switched
on at all times.

NESC retains gold status for
the ICCM Charter for the
Bereaved representing the
crematorium nationally in the
upper quartile of services to
the bereaved. No other action
proposed other than to
continue reviewing service and
facilities, and identify
improvements
Officers from ELC visit Funeral
Directors premises to discuss
the merits of using NESC and
associated matters of the
crematorium.
No action proposed other than
to keep all charges under
review.

6.
7.

10. Insufficient abated
cremations undertaken to
meet burden sharing
arrangement with Putney
Vale

2

Satisfactory

Treasurer

Surveyor

The crematorium replaced the
cremators / abatement
equipment and associated
plant with fully abated
Facultatieve Technologies
equipment in 2015. Possibility
of future abatement sharing
once Putney Vale becomes

Page 42

Key Controls

Agenda Item 6

Principal Risks

APPENDIX A

Principal Risks

11. The exhaustion of land for
future memorial
placements.
Financial - Expenditure
12. Unexpected costs

14. Budget overspends

Assurances

Responsible
Officer

Estimates of income from memorials are
reviewed annually, both for the current and
future years.

Satisfactory

Surveyor

Annual Budget under Management Agreement
subject also to WBC controls. Board accounts
regularly monitored and reported to Board.
Adequate working balance maintained and 10
year projection regularly reported. Planned
maintenance regime with service contracts for
cremator and plant maintenance. Insurance
policies in force.
Board has insurance for most risks with the
exception of subsidence. This residual risk is
accepted and the regular surveys and repairs
programme ensures that the building is
suitably maintained.
As per 12 and 13 above

Satisfactory

Clerk/Surveyor/
Treasurer

With WBC sub-contracting the
Management Agreement to
ELC, WBC has monitoring
procedures in place.

Satisfactory

Clerk/Surveyor/
Treasurer

No action proposed

Satisfactory

Clerk/Surveyor/
Treasurer
Treasurer

No action proposed

Clerk/Surveyor/
Treasurer

Officers continue to liaise with
Merton’s Environmental Health
Officer in accordance with the
crematoriums permit to
cremate.

3

fully abated to be explored.
Options for the future
placement of memorials
continue to be explored,
including the possible
purchase of additional land.

No action proposed

Agenda Item 6

WBC and ELC systems of internal control.
Satisfactory
Segregation of duties at ELC, WBC and the
Board. Monitoring against budget and reports
to Board.
Satisfactory
16. Changes in legislation - e.g. Experienced and professionally qualified
officers with industry experience. Enhanced by
Environmental Protection
Management Agreement with WBC/ELC.
Act, Pollution Prevention
Reports to Board on impact. Any required
and Control Regulations
financing strategy approved by Board and
2000 , Environmental
financial implications incorporated within 10
Permitting (England and
year projections. Feedback through
Wales) Regulations 2007

15. Overpayments

Action Plan

Page 43

13. Uninsured losses

Key Controls

APPENDIX A

and PG5 (12) emission
limits.
Business Continuity
17. Non-availability of
necessary staff operational/managerial
(sickness,
recruitment/retention)
18. Non-availability of Chief
Officers
19. Failure of Management
Agreement - termination

membership of appropriate professional
bodies.

20. Failure of gas supply

21. Failure of electricity supply
22. Failure of
cremator/equipment

23. Inability to use building
(fire, flood etc.)

24. IT/systems failure

25. Failure of a key supplier

Assurances

Responsible
Officer

Action Plan

Day to day management of operation
performed by ELC under the Management
Agreement with WBC

Satisfactory

Surveyor

Robustness of provision of substitute officers
by constituent authorities
Terms and conditions of Management
Agreement. Monthly reporting arrangements
in place

Satisfactory
Satisfactory

Clerk/Surveyor/
Treasurer
Surveyor

Arrangements with WBC subcontractor ELC are regularly
monitored and form part of the
quarterly Surveyors report to
the Board.
No action proposed

Reciprocal arrangements with Putney Vale
crematorium (operated by ELC in place to if
necessary carry out cremations at Putney Vale
crematorium.
Full back up plan in place to deal with loss of
power during a service. Ongoing power loss
as per 20 above.
As per 20 and 21 above. Coffin storage facility
created during 2010/11 with capacity for 6
coffins.
Regular maintenance and inspection of
buildings and equipment. As per 20, 21 and
22 above
PCs, file storage and BACAS system all
integrated with ELC systems and back-up
arrangements. PCs and IT kit on support
contract with ELC.
Ensure new contractors are screened before
orders are placed. Monitor existing contractors

Satisfactory

Surveyor

Board to keep the contract with
WBC and the sub-contract with
ELC under review. The current
contract expires 30/09/2019.
No action proposed

Satisfactory

Surveyor

No action proposed

Satisfactory

Surveyor

No action proposed

Satisfactory

Surveyor

No action proposed

Satisfactory

Surveyor

No action proposed

Satisfactory

Surveyor/Treasurer

Continue to ensure key
suppliers are identified and

4

Page 44

Key Controls

Agenda Item 6

Principal Risks

APPENDIX A

Principal Risks

26. Inability to use WBC Town
Hall and other operational
premises
General
27. Unauthorised/uncertified
cremations

28.

30.
31.

33.

Reliance on WBC business continuity
arrangements

Procedures in accordance with Code of
Cremation Practice and the Cremation
Regulations 2008 require various checks to be
undertaken before cremation.
Authorised/certificated body A minimum of 2 operators required to attend
cremations. Procedures in accordance with
not cremated
Code of Cremation Practice
WBC corporate systems in place.
Breach of legislation or
Documented procedures and monthly reports
statutory obligation or
under Management Agreement. Trained and
Board policies and
qualified operational staff working to national
procedures
Code of Cremation Practice. Operation
monitored by WBC and reported to the Board.
Adequate and appropriate insurance cover.
Mercury abatement equipment installed.
Site regularly inspected and treated if
Infection Control
necessary. Water in Memorial Fountain
(Legionella)
regularly treated.
Segregation of duties. Regular reconciliations.
Fraud and corruption
Income records account for sequentially
(including theft)
numbered receipts. Annual internal and
external audits undertaken
To ensure the crematorium has a plan in place
Pandemic plan
to manage excess deaths, and the potential
impact on resources, in the event of a
pandemic.
Estimates
of throughput regularly monitored
Under/over utilisation
5

Responsible
Officer

Action Plan

Satisfactory

Surveyor/Treasurer

work with WBC’s Procurement
Team
No action proposed

Satisfactory

Surveyor

No action proposed

Satisfactory

Surveyor

No action proposed

Satisfactory

Clerk/Surveyor/
Treasurer

No action proposed

Satisfactory

Surveyor

No action proposed

Satisfactory

Surveyor/Treasurer

No action proposed

Satisfactory

Surveyor

The plan is included as part of
and in conjunction with WBC’s
pandemic plan.

Satisfactory

Surveyor/Treasurer

No action proposed

Agenda Item 6

32.

Assurances

Page 45

29.

Key Controls

APPENDIX A

34. Breach of Health and
Safety regulations - staff
and public (machinery, fire,
lifting, disease, hazards)

36.

Vandalism/damage to site

Management of Board's Affairs
37. Inadequate Governance
arrangements

38. Non-availability of Chief

Assurances

Responsible
Officer

Action Plan

Surveyor

No action proposed

Surveyor/Treasurer

No action proposed

Surveyor

No action proposed

Satisfactory

Clerk/Surveyor/
Treasurer

No action proposed

Satisfactory

Clerk/Surveyor/

No action proposed

and reported to Board. Adequate provision is
in place for the number of cremations
undertaken. 2 EPA compliant cremators in
use, including large capacity cremator, and use
of WBC burial chapel for services when
required. Coffin storage facility developed to
cater for increased demand.
Reliance on WBC procedures and terms of
Satisfactory
Management Agreement. Quarterly hazard
inspections and annual risk assessments
undertaken. Health and safety incorporated in
monthly reports under the Management
Agreement
Staff utilise safe and bankings collected weekly Satisfactory
by security company minimising cash/cheque
holdings. Funeral Directors are encouraged to
use BACS transfers to the Board's bank
account for debts due. Many payments
increasingly made by debit/credit cards.
Staffing presence in daylight hours. Member of Satisfactory
ELC staff currently resides on site and part of
his duties includes locking/ unlocking the gates
and regular patrols throughout the week and at
weekends. CCTV installed in buildings and
further floodlighting approved.
The Board, as a Smaller Relevant Body,
approves an Annual Governance and
Accountability Return which is subject to audit
by the Board's external auditors. The Board
receives regular reports on governance issues
throughout the year.
See 18 above
6

Page 46

35. Loss of cash/cheques

Key Controls

Agenda Item 6

Principal Risks

APPENDIX A

Principal Risks

Assurances

See 19 above

Satisfactory

Terms of Management Agreement, regular
inspections of buildings, procedures in
accordance with Cremation Regulations 2008.
Complaints procedure, regular reports to the
Board. Freedom of Information Publication
Scheme.
WBC and ELC officers work to corporate
guidelines regarding GDPR and undertake
regular training. Continued registration with
the Information Commissioner’s Office.

Satisfactory

Officer

39. Failure of Management
agreement

40. Loss of reputation,
compensation claims

41. Data Protection and
compliance with General
Data Protection
Regulations

Satisfactory

Responsible
Officer
Treasurer
Clerk/Surveyor/
Treasurer
Clerk/Surveyor/
Treasurer

Clerk/Surveyor/
Treasurer

Action Plan

No action proposed
No action proposed

Continued registration with
Information Commissioner’s
Office

Page 47

Key Controls

Agenda Item 6

7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 49

Official

Agenda Item 7

Report to:

North East Surrey Crematorium Board

Date:

Report title:

Report of the Treasurer, Clerk and Surveyor on the review of the Standing
Orders, Scheme of Delegations and the Financial Regulations

11 September 2018

Chair of Committee/Lead Councillor Michael Ryder
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Mark Davies - Treasurer to the Board, 020 8871 6502
Clive Andrews - Surveyor to the Board, 020 8871 7363
Sharon Major - Clerk to the Board, 020 8770 4990

Open/Exempt:

Open

1.

Summary

1.1

This report is to provide an update to the Board on the progress made with the actions from the
Annual Review of Internal Control, as reported to you by the Treasurer on 12 June 2018.

1.2

Members will recall that there was an action on the Officers of the Board to review the Board’s
Standing Orders, the Scheme of Delegations and the Financial Regulations on at least an
annual basis to ensure that they are up to date, accurate and appropriate. The target date set
out in the management response for the completion of this review was by September 2018.

2.

Recommendations
The North East Surrey Crematorium Board is recommended to:

2.1

Note that the review of the Board’s Standing Orders, the Scheme of Delegations and the
Financial Regulations has taken place within the Internal Audit recommendation target time
frame.

2.2

Approve the Standing Orders as attached at Appendix A.

2.3

Approve the Scheme of Delegations as attached at Appendix B.

2.4

Approve the Financial Regulations as attached at Appendix C.

2.5

Note that all other recommendations and actions arising from the Annual Review of Internal
Control have now been implemented.

3.

Background and Updating Information
Annual Review of Internal Controls

OfficialAgenda

Item 7

Page 50

3.1

The report presented to the Board in the June 2018 meeting outlined the recommendations of
the South West London Audit Partnership (SWLAP) in relation to the Annual Review of Internal
Control and the management response to those identified actions.

3.2

The report recommended that the Standing Orders, the Scheme of Delegations and the
Financial Regulations be reviewed annually by the Officers of the Board to ensure that they are
up to date, accurate and appropriate.

3.3

All documents have now been reviewed by the Chief Officers with various amendments
proposed. These are generally just housekeeping changes with nothing of material impact.
Deletions to the existing approved documents are shown by striking through the original text
with additions identified in bold text. Upon approval the documents will be updated with the
recommended changes and then form the base documents for the next annual review.

3.4

The Board should be reassured that all other recommendations and actions arising from the
Annual Review of Internal Control which mainly related to the recording of Medical Fees and
Statistics, Funeral Directors accounts and the NESCB Website have now been implemented
and will continue to be kept under review.

4.

Issues
Amendments to the Standing Orders

4.1

The following amendment is proposed to the Standing Orders:
Item 12 - Interests of Members in Contracts and Other Matters

4.2

The wording of this section has been amended to adhere to the requirements of the Localism
Act 2011. Where legislation previously referred to personal and prejudicial interests, the
requirement is now to declare disclosable pecuniary interests by virtue of s.30(3) of the Act.
Members are further advised on the declaration of other pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests
and the impact on participation in board business. The amendment is included in full in
Appendix A.
Amendments to the Scheme of Delegations

4.3

Only minor amendments have been suggested following the review of the Scheme of
Delegations. These are included in full in Appendix B.
Amendments to the Financial Regulations

4.4

Only minor amendments have been suggested following the review of the Financial
Regulations. These are included in full in Appendix C.

5.

Options Considered

5.1

There are no options considered or recommended as part of this report.

Page 51

Official

6.

Agenda Item 7

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

The financial implications arising are contained within this report.
Legal

6.2

There are no legal implications arising from the matters contained within this report.
Other impacts and implications

6.3

There are no other impact and implications arising from the matters contained within this report.

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix
letter

Title

A

Revised Standing Orders

B

Revised Scheme of Delegations

C

Revised Financial Regulations

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 29 August 2018

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 53

Agenda Item 7
APPENDIX A

NORTH EAST SURREY CREMATORIUM BOARD

STANDING ORDERS
[For approval on 11 September 2018]

Agenda Item 7

Page 54
APPENDIX A

1.

Annual Meeting
The Annual Meeting of the Board shall be held at the place and time in June as the
board shall from time to time by resolution appoint.

2.

Quarterly Meeting
A meeting of the Board shall be held at quarterly intervals in each of the months of
March, June, September and December at the place and time in each month as the
Board shall be resolution from time to time appoint.

3.

Notice of Meetings
The notice of any meeting of the Board shall specify the business proposed to be
transacted at the meeting.

4.

Chairman of the Board or of a Meeting
In these Standing Orders the expression “Chairman” means the Chairman of the Board,
but any power or duty assigned to the Chairman in relation to the conduct of a meeting
may be exercised by the person presiding at the meeting.

5.

Order of Business at Annual Meeting
At the Annual Meeting of the Board the following business shall be transacted in the
order named.

6.

(a)

The appointment of Chairman

(b)

The appointment of Vice-Chairman

(c)

Other business (if any) specified in the notice of the meeting.

Order of Business at Other Meetings
(a)

To choose a member of the Board to preside if both the Chairman and ViceChairman be absent.

(b)

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the last ordinary meeting of the
Board and of any special meeting held subsequently thereto and to transact any
business arising therefrom.

(c)

To deal with business expressly required by statute to be done.

Page 55

Agenda Item 7
APPENDIX A

7.

(d)

To dispose of business (if any) remaining from the last meeting.

(e)

To receive and consider reports of Committees.

(f)

To receive and consider reports and recommendations from Officers of the Board.

(g)

To authorise the sealing of documents so far as the Board’s authority is required
by statute or these Standing Orders.

(h)

To receive and consider tenders.

(i)

Other business (if any) specified in the notice of the meeting.

Rules of Debate
The ruling of the Chairman on a point of order or on the admissibility of a personal
explanation shall not be open to discussion.

8.

Disorderly Conduct
If at a meeting any member of the Board, in the opinion of the Chairman notified to the
Board, misconduct himself or herself by persistently disregarding the ruling of the Chair
or by behaving irregularly, improperly, or offensively, or by wilfully obstructing the
business of the Board, it shall be competent for a member to move “That the member
named be not further heard” or “That the member named do leave the meeting” and the
motion, if seconded, shall be put and determined without discussion.

9.

Voting on Appointments
Where there are more than two persons nominated for any position to be filled by the
Board and of the votes given there is not a majority in favour of one person, the name of
the person having the least number of votes shall be struck off and a fresh vote shall be
taken, and so on until a majority of votes is given in favour of one person.

10. Power to Resolve into Committee
The Board may resolve itself into a Committee of the whole Board.

11. Motions Affecting Persons Employed by the Board
If any question arises at a meeting of the Board as to the appointment, promotion,
dismissal, salary or conditions of service, or as to the conduct of any person employed

Page 56

Agenda Item 7

APPENDIX A
by the Board, it shall be considered by the Board in Committee unless the Board
otherwise resolve.
12. Interest of Members in Contracts and Other Matters
The Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government, by virtue of section
30(3) of the Localism Act 2011, has prescribed certain disclosable pecuniary interests
which the Act requires a Member to declare in their Authority’s Register of Interests (as
maintained under section 29 of the Act). Failure to declare such interests is a criminal
offence under section 34 of the Localism Act.
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
A pecuniary interest is a “disclosable pecuniary interest” in relation to a person (‘M’) if it
is of a description specified in regulations made by the Secretary of State and either—
(a) it is an interest of M's, or
(b) it is an interest of—
(i) M's spouse or civil partner,
(ii) a person with whom M is living as husband and wife, or
(iii) a person with whom M is living as if they were civil partners, and M is
aware that that other person has the interest.
Any member of the board with a disclosable pecuniary interest should withdraw from the
room or chamber where a meeting considering the business is being held, whilst that
business is considered.
Other Pecuniary and Non-pecuniary Interests
Members must declare at a meeting, any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in
any business of the authorities if the interest is one which other members considering
the item of business should be aware of when making their decision.
Where any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest is declared in any business that is
to be decided at a meeting at which the Member is present, that Member must declare
the interest, but can continue to speak and vote on the matter. If the other pecuniary or
non-pecuniary interest is one which a member of the public, with knowledge of the
relevant facts, would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
Member’s judgement of the public interest, then that Member should declare the interest
and withdraw from the room or chamber where a meeting considering the business is
being held, whilst that business is considered.
13. Interest of Officers in Contracts
Where an Officer of the Board is employed by a constituent authority that Officer shall
comply with the Code of Conduct for Employees maintained by that constituent authority
when carrying out his duties on behalf of the Board. Where no other Code of Conduct

Page 57

Agenda Item 7
APPENDIX A

applies, the Officer shall comply with the current Code of Conduct for Employees
maintained by the London Borough of Sutton.
Without prejudice to the generality of the above, the Clerk of the Board shall record in a
book to be kept for that purpose particulars of any private interests or other matters
disclosed by an Officer of the Board pursuant to any applicable Code of Conduct for
Employees.
14. Relatives of Members or Officers
Candidates for any appointment under the Board shall when making application disclose
in writing to the Clerk whether to their knowledge they are related to any member of or
the holder of any senior office under the Board. A candidate who fails so to do shall be
disqualified for such appointment and if appointed shall be liable to dismissal without
notice. Every member and senior officer of the Board shall disclose to the Board any
relationship known to him to exist between himself and a candidate for an appointment
of which he is aware. It shall be the duty of the Clerk to report to the Board or to the
appropriate Committee any such disclosure made to him.
Where relationship to a member of the Board is disclosed, the Standing Order headed
“Interest of Members in Contracts and Other Matters” shall apply.
The purport of this Standing Order shall be stated either in the advertisement inviting
applications for appointment or in any form of application supplied for use by
candidates.
15. Sealing of Documents
The Common Seal of the Board shall not be affixed to any document unless the sealing
has been authorised by a resolution of the Board or of a Committee to which the Board
has delegated its powers in this behalf, but a resolution of the Board (or of a Committee
where that Committee has the power) authorising the acceptance of any tender, the
purchase, sale, letting, or taking of any property, the presentation of any petition,
memorial or address, the making of any precept or contract or any other matter or thing,
shall be a sufficient authority for sealing any document necessary to give effect to the
resolution.
The seal shall be attested (i) by the Chairman or in his absence by the Vice-Chairman of
the Board, or in the absence of both, by a member Board and (ii) by the Clerk of the
Board or any deputy approved by the Board. An entry of every sealing of a document
shall be made and consecutively numbered in a book to be provided for the purpose
and shall be signed by one of the persons who shall have attested the Seal.
16. Signature of Orders for Payment and Cheques
Officers of the Board shall place orders and make payments, by cheque or
internet/telephone banking transfers, only where these are in line with the estimates

Agenda Item 7

Page 58
APPENDIX A

approved by the Board. This shall be evidenced by periodic interim accounts
statements presented to the Board.

17. Signature of Documents
Where any document will be a necessary step in legal proceedings on behalf of the
Board, it shall, unless any enactment requires or authorises, or the Board shall have
given the necessary authority to some other person for the purpose of such
proceedings, be signed by the Clerk of the Board.

18. Chairman and Vice-Chairman Ex-Officio Members of Committees
The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Board shall be ex-officio members of every
Committee appointed by the Board.

19. Election of Chairmen of Committees
Every Committee shall, at its first meeting, before proceeding to any other business,
appoint a Chairman and, if it so desires, a Vice-Chairman, for the year. In the absence
of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Committee from a meeting of that
Committee, a Chairman for the meeting shall be appointed.

20. Quorum of Committee
Except where the quorum of any Committee is expressly stated in the Standing Orders
of the Board or where otherwise ordered by the Board, business shall not be transacted
at a meeting of any Committee unless at least three members of the Committee are
present.

21. Voting at Committee Meetings
All questions in Committee shall be determined by show of hands by a majority of the
Committee present and voting. In the case of any equality of votes, the Chairman or
other person presiding at the meeting shall have a second or casting vote.

22. Suspension of Standing Orders
Any of the preceding Standing Orders may be suspended so far as regards any
business at the meeting where its suspension is moved, but shall not be suspended
unless there are present at least five members of the Board.

Page 59

Agenda Item 7
APPENDIX A

23. Freedom of Information
23.1. Save where the Board have resolved to exclude members of the public under
paragraph 23.3 below all meetings of the Board and its Committees shall be held
in public.
23.2. The above paragraph 23.1 shall not apply to meetings of the Board’s Complaints
Panel which shall always take place in private and to which no member of the
public (other than the complainant and anyone else associated with the
complainant) shall be admitted.
23.3. The Board may resolve to exclude members of the public whenever it is likely, in
view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the
proceedings, that if members of the public were present during that item there
would be a disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in Section 100 I
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended). The Board must exclude the public if
it is likely that confidential information described in Section 100A(3) of the 1972
Act might otherwise be disclosed to members of the public.
23.4. Save as regards material relating to any exempt item (as previously defined)
copies of all agendas, reports and minutes shall be made available for public
inspection on request and by appointment at the office of the Clerk.
23.5. Requests for information received pursuant to Section 2 Freedom of Information
Act 2000 (whether received directly, via a constituent authority or via any other
source) shall be referred to an officer of the Board appointed for that purpose.

24. Contract Standing Orders
24.1

As a public sector body the Board must comply with EU procurement procedures
in relation to all works, supply or service contracts above minimum EU
thresholds from time to time in force.

24.2

In all other respects the Board has adopted the Code of Practice for the
Procurement of Works, Supplies and Services of Wandsworth Borough Council,
save that a Member of the Board must be present during tender-opening and
decisions relating to the acceptance of any tender shall be made by the Board
(save insofar as any decision relating to the acceptance or rejection of a tender
has been delegated to an Officer of the Board or to any other organisation
contracted to manage the Board’s operations).

25. Complaints Panel
25.1

There shall be a Complaints Panel comprising Members of the Board.

25.2

The function of the Complaints Panel is to provide a pool of Members, any two
(or more) of whom may be called upon to adjudicate in any unresolved complaint

Agenda Item 7

Page 60
APPENDIX A
made against the Board or it’s Officers or Contractors and (where appropriate) to
provide redress to the complainant in accordance with paragraph 25.3 below.

25.3

Where a complaint is found to be substantiated the Members adjudicating any
complaint have delegated power to issue a written apology on behalf of the
Board; grant a refund of charges previously paid; or write off unpaid charges.
Where those Members consider such delegated redress to be inadequate having
regard to the gravity of a substantiated complaint, they shall make a
recommendation to the Board as to the appropriate redress. The final decision
on that recommended redress shall then rest with the Board.

25.4

The outcome of all complaints adjudicated by Members of the Complaints Panel
shall be reported to the next meeting of the Board. Such report shall be given in
confidence unless the Board otherwise decides.

Page 61

Agenda Item 7
APPENDIX B

NORTH EAST SURREY CREMATORIUM BOARD

SCHEME OF DELEGATIONS
[For approval on 11 September 2018]

Page 1 of 4

Agenda Item 7

Page 62
APPENDIX B

INTRODUCTION
1.

The Board recognises the need to delegate certain functions to its Chief Officers to
facilitate the day to day running of the Board's affairs. Whilst certain powers may be
delegated to the Chief Officers, the Board recognises that it retains overall responsibility
for any actions taken.

2.

The Board's activities are governed by the North East Surrey Crematorium Board Act
1956 (the Act) and associated legislation, and the Board's Standing Orders. The Board
also has contractual arrangements with Wandsworth Borough Council (WBC) for the
day to day management of the crematorium (the Management Agreement), effective
from 1st April 2004. In addition, the Board follows best practice wherever possible,
including the Institute of Cemetery and Crematorium Management (ICCM) the
Federation of British Cremation Authorities (FBCA) and CIPFA/SOLACE guidance
where applicable.

GENERAL
3.

Chief Officers may delegate authority to appropriate officers subject to the Board's
approval, provided delegated limits do not exceed the delegated limits applying to the
Chief Officer.

4.

All Officers shall not have authority to deal with financial matters otherwise than in
accordance with the Scheme of Delegation. Officers shall not have authority to take any
action that would contravene, or be likely to cause the Board to contravene, applicable
legislation, and shall have proper regard to the legality of commitments entered into in
the exercise of their delegated authority.

5.

Where action is urgently required in circumstances where the Chief Officer does not
have delegated authority to act, then the Chief Officer should obtain specific
authorisation for appropriate action from the Chairman of the Board, or the Vice
Chairman. Each such authorisation should be reported to the next meeting of the Board.

6.

Chief Officers shall monitor, and the Treasurer shall report to the Board, the progress of
expenditure and income in relation to estimates. The Chief Officers shall provide the
Board with such explanations as they may require in this connection.

7.

Chief Officers shall inform the Board immediately if it becomes apparent that estimates
are likely to be exceeded at the end of the financial year, or where the estimate of any
capital scheme is likely to be exceeded.

8.

Segregation of duties between placement of orders and authorisation of payments shall
be maintained at all times.

9.

The WBC Code of Practice on the Procurement of Works, Supplies and Services has
been adopted by the Board and shall apply to its Chief Officers.

Page 2 of 4

Page 63

Agenda Item 7
APPENDIX B

SURVEYOR
10. The Surveyor is responsible for the day to day operation and the contract performance
of the crematorium, including in particular, any necessary actions under the
Management Agreement.
11. The Surveyor shall ensure compliance with statutory requirements on operational
matters, and best practice, including recommendations of professional bodies. In this
regard, the Surveyor will report to the Board on a regular and timely basis.
12. The Surveyor shall prepare, and report to the Board on the Business Plan and
performance against the action plan.
13. Subject to compliance with WBC's Code of Practice on Procurement, the Surveyor may
arrange for orders to be placed for works, supplies and services, where these have
been previously approved by the Board, and can be contained within approved
estimates.

TREASURER
14. The arrangements for the Board's finances were established under Part V of the Act,
generally applying the same legislation as that applying to Local Authorities. The
Treasurer has responsibility for all payments to and from the Board's accounts and for
the arrangements for the proper administration of the Board's financial affairs.
15. The Treasurer shall ensure that the Board's financial systems produce adequate and
timely information.
16. The Treasurer has responsibility for signing cheques or generating bank transfers via
the internet or telephone banking facilities, having first ensured that the controls over
ordering and receipt of goods and services have been correctly applied. Preparation of
payments, control of access to the internet and telephone banking facilities and the bank
account reconciliation will be undertaken independently by staff within WBC's
Accountancy Section Financial Management Division.
17. Reimbursement of costs incurred by WBC may be made by the Treasurer in accordance
with the Section 5 of the Management Agreement.
18. The Treasurer may invest short term balances in accordance with the Act, including the
lending of sums to WBC on a 7-day notice basis, or using an interest earning bank
account.
19. Responsibility for Treasury Management is delegated to the Treasurer and, on a day to
day basis, Treasury Management is carried out by staff within WBC's Accountancy
Section Financial Management Division. Decisions on short term lending and

Page 3 of 4

Agenda Item 7

Page 64
APPENDIX B

transfers between the Board's bank accounts may be made on behalf of the Treasurer
by those staff.

CLERK
20. The Clerk shall be responsible for convening, and for keeping minutes of, meetings of
the Board, in accordance with Part II of the Act.

Page 4 of 4

Page 65

Agenda Item 7
APPENDIX C

NORTH EAST SURREY CREMATORIUM BOARD

FINANCIAL REGULATIONS
[For approval on 11 September 2018]

Page 1 of 7

Agenda Item 7

Page 66
APPENDIX C

STATUS AND REVIEW OF FINANCIAL REGULATIONS
1.

The Board expects the highest standards of propriety in the conduct of all its business,
prudence in managing risks, and economy, efficiency and effectiveness in all its
functions. Accordingly these Financial Regulations apply to every Member and Officer
of the Board and anyone acting on its behalf.

2.

The Financial Regulations identify the principal financial responsibilities of Board
Members, the Clerk, the Surveyor, the Treasurer and any other Officers appointed by
the Board with full delegated responsibility for financial management.

3.

The Treasurer is responsible for maintaining a continuous review of the Financial
Regulations and submitting any additions or changes necessary to the Board for
approval.

4.

The Treasurer is responsible for issuing financial directives, practice-notes and advice
as needed to underpin the Financial Regulations.

5.

Chief Officers are responsible for ensuring that their staff are sufficiently aware of, and
comply with, the Board’s Financial Regulations and financial directives and guidance
issued by the Treasurer, issuing further advice and instructions as appropriate for their
own area.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
6.

The Constitution of the Board is set out in the North East Surrey Crematorium Board
Act, 1956 (as amended by subsequent legislation), and the Board's Standing Orders.

7.

The Board is responsible for adopting the Constitution, Standing Orders, and Scheme of
Delegations and for approving the policy framework and estimates within which the
Board and Chief Officers operate. It is also responsible for approving and monitoring
compliance with the Board’s overall framework of accountability and control, set out in
its Constitution and Standing Orders, and for monitoring compliance with the policy
framework and estimates.

8.

The Board can delegate responsibility for some of its financial decisions to a committee
of the Board, an individual Member, or an Officer within specified financial limits. The
Board is responsible for establishing protocols to ensure that individual Members
consult with relevant Officers before taking a decision within their delegated authority,
having proper regard to the legal and financial liabilities and risk management issues
that may arise from the decision. The Board is also responsible for maintaining a
Scheme of Delegations to Officers.

9.

The Board is responsible for approving the statement of accounts or equivalent for each
financial year, on the basis of a report by the Treasurer.

10. Chief Officers are responsible for:a. ensuring that Board resources are used with the maximum degree of
economy, efficiency and effectiveness;

Page 2 of 7

Page 67

Agenda Item 7
APPENDIX C

b. ensuring that Board resources are used only for the purpose intended to
achieve the approved policies and objectives, are appropriately secured and
maintained, and are properly accounted for;
c. consulting with the Treasurer and seeking Board approval on any matter
liable to affect the Board’s finances materially, before any commitments are
incurred;
d. promoting sound financial practices in relation to the standards, performance
and development of their staff and contractors, liaising as necessary with and
having regard to advice of the Treasurer;
e. ensuring that they are properly advised of the financial implications of all
proposals in relation to their services; and
f. ensuring that Board Members are properly advised of the financial
implications of all proposals they are known to be considering, and that the
advice is endorsed by the Treasurer.
11. The Treasurer is the officer appointed by the Board in accordance with Section 151 of
the Local Government Act 1972 to be responsible for the proper administration of the
Board’s financial affairs. The Treasurer is therefore responsible in particular for:a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.

setting and monitoring compliance with financial management standards;
advising on the corporate financial position;
providing financial advice on proposals before the Board;
determining the accounting policies and procedures for the Board;
presenting estimates, accounts or equivalent for the Board’s approval; and
treasury management.

FINANCIAL PLANNING
12. The Board is responsible annually, in December for setting revised estimates for the
current financial year, the estimates for future financial years including reserves for
specified and general contingencies for the forthcoming financial year, and for approving
expenditure within those estimates. The Board is also responsible for the approval of
any levy requirement or distribution of surplus balances.
13. The Treasurer is responsible for:a. ensuring that estimates and advice are prepared as required by the Board for
the purposes of paragraph 12 above;
b. advising on appropriate levels of reserves for the Board;
c. the approval of payments made in accordance with paragraph 12 above;
d. authorising, with the agreement of any Chief Officers concerned, the transfer
of provision from one budget head to another; and
e. maintaining arrangements for Chief Officers to forecast expenditure and
income in relation to budgets so that prompt reports are made to the Board if
forecast adverse variances are material.
14. It is the responsibility of Chief Officers:a. to ensure that accountable budget management is in place for each item of
income and expenditure under the control of the Chief Officer, having due
regard to the decision-making that influences the income/expenditure
concerned;

Page 3 of 7

Agenda Item 7

Page 68
APPENDIX C

b. to ensure that realistic plans are prepared and implemented to deliver
services within budget, and prepare and submit to the Treasurer realistic
forecasts of income and expenditure compared with budget in the form and at
the frequency required by the Treasurer;
c. to ensure that appropriate corrective action is taken where significant
variations from the approved estimates are forecast; and
d. to ensure that prior approval is given by the Board for any measures that are
likely to materially extend or reduce the Board’s services, and for new
commitments for which there would otherwise be no budget provision.
RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL OF RESOURCES
Risk Management
15. It is the responsibility of Chief Officers:a. to ensure the regular identification, review and management of risk, having
regard to the Board's Risk Management Strategy and advice and instructions
from the Treasurer and other specialist officers (e.g. crime prevention, fire
prevention, health and safety);
b. to notify the Treasurer or his representative immediately of any loss, liability
or damage that may lead to a claim against the Board, together with any
information or explanation required by the Treasurer or the Board’s insurers;
c. to notify the Treasurer or his representative immediately of any risks,
properties, vehicles or other assets that require or cease to require insurance,
and of any alterations affecting existing insurances;
d. to consult the Treasurer or his representative and the Clerk on the terms of
any indemnity that the Board is requested to give, on appropriate contract
conditions for contractors to indemnify the Board, and on suitable minimum
insurance levels for inclusion in contracts; and
e. to ensure that employees, Board Members, or anyone else acting on behalf
of the Board, are instructed not to make any admission of liability or offer of
compensation that might prejudice the assessment of a potential liability of
the Board or of its insurers.
16. The Treasurer is responsible for reviewing risk management controls and advising and
instructing Chief Officers accordingly, and for procuring insurance cover where
appropriate.
Internal Control
17. It is the responsibility of Chief Officers to maintain and promote sound arrangements for
internal control. These arrangements will be devised by management to help to ensure
that the Board’s objectives are achieved in a manner that promotes economical, efficient
and effective use of resources and that the Board’s assets and interests are
safeguarded. The arrangements will have regard to the advice and instructions of the
Treasurer, and will be reviewed annually by the Internal Audit service.
18. The Treasurer is responsible for reviewing systems of internal control, including the
effectiveness of the system of internal audit, advising and instructing Chief Officers
accordingly, and reporting all findings to the Board.
19. The Board is responsible for approving the annual Statement on Internal Control
Annual Governance and Accountability Return (AGAR), in accordance with
Page 4 of 7

Page 69

Agenda Item 7
APPENDIX C

applicable Accounts and Audit Regulations or other statutory requirements, having
considered the findings of the reviews of internal control, and in the light of the reviews
of the effectiveness of risk management and the control environment.
Audit
20. The Treasurer is responsible for ensuring:a. the maintenance and procurement of an internal audit function that is
sufficient in its coverage and independent in its planning and operation;
b. that the Head of Audit has direct access to the Clerk, all levels of
management and the Board; and
c. that the internal auditors have been trained to comply with professional good
practice.
21. The Audit Commission is responsible for appointing appointed external auditors to the
Board are responsible for to reviewing and reporting upon:a. the financial aspects of the Board’s corporate governance arrangements;
b. the Board’s financial statements, to be satisfied that the statement of
accounts “presents fairly” the financial position of the Board and its income
and expenditure for the year in question and complies with the legal
requirements; and
c. aspects of the Board’s arrangements to manage its performance.
22. The Board may, from time to time, be subject to audit, inspection or investigation by
external bodies such as H.M. Customs and Excise and the Inland Revenue Her
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs, who have statutory rights of access.
23. It is the responsibility of Chief Officers:a. to ensure that internal auditors, external auditors, and other authorised
inspectors, are given access at all reasonable times to premises, personnel,
documents and assets, and are provided with any information and
explanations, that they consider necessary for the purposes of their work;
b. to consider and respond promptly to recommendations in audit reports; and
c. to ensure that any agreed actions arising from audit recommendations are
carried out in a timely and efficient fashion.
24. The Board is responsible for reviewing external auditor’s reports and annual audit letter
and any reports issued by the Head of Audit. The Board may consult directly with
internal and external auditors.
Preventing Fraud and Corruption
25. All Board Members and employees are personally responsible for ensuring integrity in
the conduct of the Board’s business, in particular by ensuring that they (and any
subordinates) are aware of the their constituent Council's anti-fraud and anti-corruption
policies and procedures and by alerting the relevant Chief Officer or the Head of Audit to
any suspected breach.
26. Chief Officers are responsible for notifying the Head of Audit immediately of any
suspected fraud, theft, irregularity, improper use or misappropriation of the Board’s
property or resources.
Page 5 of 7

Agenda Item 7

Page 70
APPENDIX C

Assets
27. Chief Officers, having regard to advice and instructions from the Treasurer and any
other relevant professional advisors employed by the Board, should ensure that:a. resources are used only for the purposes of the Board and are properly
accounted for;
b. resources are available for use when required;
c. resources no longer required are disposed of in accordance with the law and
the procedure rules of the Board so as to maximise benefits;
d. an asset register is maintained for the Board, assets are recorded when they
are acquired by the Board and this record is updated as changes occur with
respect to the location and condition of the asset;
e. all staff are aware of their responsibilities with regard to safeguarding the
Board’s assets and information, including the requirements of the relevant
Data Protection Act 1998, including General Data Protection Regulation
provisions, Freedom of Information Act 2000 and software copyright
legislation;
f. all staff are aware of their responsibilities with regard to safeguarding the
security of the Board’s computer systems, including maintaining restricted
access to the information held on them and compliance with Wandsworth
Council's computer and internet security policies; and
g. contingency plans for the security of assets and continuity of service in the
event of disaster or system failure are in place.
Treasury Management
28. It is the responsibility of the Treasurer to:a. establish and maintain bank accounts;
b. manage the Board's available funds to achieve optimum performance, having
due regard to legal constraints, and ensuring that funds are available to meet
the Board's financial obligations;
c. borrow money, where appropriate, in accordance with the North East Surrey
Crematorium Board Act, 1956, subject to the approval of the Board;
d. ensure that loans outside the terms of Board-approved schemes are not
made to third parties, and that interests are not acquired in companies, joint
ventures or other enterprises, without the approval of the Board following
consultation with the Treasurer;
e. ensure secure administration of funds held by the Board on behalf of third
parties; and
f. ensure that leasing agreements and other credit arrangements are not
entered into without the prior approval of the Treasurer and, if applicable,
approval of the scheme for inclusion in the estimates.

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE PROCEDURES
29. The Board, having regard to the advice of the Surveyor and the Treasurer, is
responsible for determining charges for Board services, for writing off sums due to the
Board, and for delegating authority to Chief Officers to write off sums due to the Board.
30. It is the responsibility of Chief Officers to ensure that:a. all income due to the Board is identified and charged correctly;
Page 6 of 7

Page 71

Agenda Item 7
APPENDIX C

b. all charges for Board services are reviewed at least once a year having
regard to their appropriateness in relation to relevant Board policies;
c. all income is collected from the correct person, or organisation, at the right
time, using the correct procedures and the appropriate stationery;
d. all monies received by an employee, contractor or agent on behalf of the
Board are paid without delay to the Board’s bank account, properly recorded,
and reconciled to the bank account by a person who is not involved in the
collection or banking process;
e. wherever possible, cash collection duties are separated from those for
identifying the amount due and those for reconciling the amount due to the
amount received;
f. effective action is taken to pursue non-payment within defined timescales;
g. formal approval for debt write-off is obtained without delay;
h. a scheme of delegation is operated effectively within their area identifying
staff authorised to act on the Chief Officer’s behalf in respect of placing
orders, payments, income collection and write-offs, together with the limits of
their authority;
i. all goods and services are ordered only by appropriate persons and are
correctly recorded;
j. goods and services received are checked to ensure they are in accordance
with the order, wherever possible by someone different from the person who
placed the order;
k. payments are not made unless goods have been received by the Board to the
correct price, quantity and quality standards;
l. all payments are made to the correct person, for the correct amount and are
properly recorded, regardless of the payment method;
m. for payments to employees and Members, proper authorisation procedures
are in place and that there is adherence to corporate timetables in relation to
starters, leavers, variations, and enhancements, and payments are made on
the basis of timesheets or claims;
n. all taxable transactions are identified, properly carried out and accounted for
within stipulated timescales;
o. information is provided for tax and other appropriate authorities within their
stipulated timescale; and
p. payments are only made without explicit Board authorisation if they are
consistent with the estimates previously approved by the Board.

Page 7 of 7

This page is intentionally left blank

